

JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

Forty-eighth Legislative Assembly

* * * * *

TWENTY-EIGHTH DAY

Bismarck, February 10, 1983

The House convened at 2:00 p.m., with Speaker Kelly presiding.

The prayer was offered by Rev. Dan Wissmann, Good Shepherd Lutheran Church, Bismarck.

ROLL CALL

The roll was called and all members were present, except Representatives Backes, DeMers, Gorder, and Knudson.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

REVISION AND CORRECTION OF THE JOURNAL

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Revision and Correction of the Journal has carefully examined the Journal of the Twenty-seventh day and finds the same to be correct.

REP. LAUGHLIN, Chairman

REP. GULLICKSON MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

SIGNING OF BILLS AND RESOLUTIONS

THE CHIEF CLERK ANNOUNCED that the Speaker signed the following:

SB 2065, SB 2193, SB 2281

CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

MESSAGES TO THE SENATE
HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

HB 1060, HB 1226, HB 1237, HB 1317, HB 1417, HB 1465,
HB 1470, HB 1498, HB 1522, HB 1530, HB 1583, HB 1585,
HB 1633, HB 1672, HB 1674, HB 1688, HB 1719

Very respectfully,
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to return herewith the following which the Speaker has signed:

SB 2065, SB 2193, SB 2281

Very respectfully,
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE

SENATE CHAMBER

MADAM SPEAKER: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the Senate has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

SB 2250, SB 2308, SB 2328, SB 2343, SB 2400, SB 2414
SB 2432, SB 2444, SB 2450, SB 2463, SCR 4019, SCR 4022,
SCR 4026, SCR 4028, SCR 4034

Very respectfully,
LEO LEIDHOLM, Secretary

MOTION

REP. MUSHIK MOVED that a committee of two be appointed to escort the Honorable Mark Andrews, U. S. Senator, to the rostrum to address the House, which motion prevailed.

SPEAKER KELLY APPOINTED Representatives Sinner and Peltier to such committee and Senator Andrews was escorted to the rostrum.

REMARKS OF U. S. SENATOR MARK ANDREWS

It's so good of you to extend for a few moments the courtesy of the floor, and let me add that it will be a few moments. I spent a lot more time in the House than I have in the Senate where they use the filibuster type thing and I recognize how busy you are.

Madam Speaker: I think it is typical of North Dakota to come and address the session of our House where the Speaker is one of our outstanding women and where the Dean of the House is one of the other outstanding women in North Dakota.

It certainly goes in the tradition that is North Dakota. Not only has your work in public service been recognized by having you elected to be the Speaker of this great body, but Brynhild Haugland's fantastic longevity is more than just longevity. It is confidence and capable and caring service over all of those years and I think it shows that the spirit that has been North Dakota for so long still lives in these halls.

I feel closely about that because my grandparents came to North Dakota in Territorial days and my grandmother was one of the first, probably, women doctors in the country, and they practiced together in New York City from 1877 to 1879. I am sure there was no ERA at that particular point in time and a woman doctor was not really recognized in New York City, and they came west to Dakota Territory where they settled in Mapleton three years after

Custer got handled by one of our Natives who wasn't too interested in his political aspirations, called Sitting Bull. She had a great and long and a distinguished time here in our home state.

Actually, those of us who serve in the Legislature, as I just told the Senate, I would hesitate to come here and make any suggestions to you because immediately you would quite properly say, "Hey, Mark, you know, given what's happening down in Washington, straighten that mess out, don't give us too many suggestions out here."

Really, I think that in legislative bodies we face challenges day by day. One of the great challenges, of course, that we face in legislative bodies is to learn how to not just to respond to the problems that keep coming up again and again and again, but to devise and initiate programs that will be good for all time, and to use this government of ours to serve the people.

I don't think that those of us who are trusted with representing the great people of our state in a legislative capacity can shrink away and try to say that government is not good, that government is not competent. Government is good and competent and responsive if we make it that way.

Now, of course, our challenge is from both sides of the political aisle. I think we have to initiate programs that do, in fact, work. A moment ago I was talking about the PIK Program in the other body. I won't do that here, and predict how it is going to work, but I will share one thing with you and that's what all of you recognize, that those of us who are legislators live with frustration because we see the programs that should work or we see areas where there should be programs and the problems remain. They are things that ought to be attended to that are not.

I am a farmer from a farm state at a time when we have surplus production that we're desperately trying to cut back in order to get a little bit better price. I realize how many of the Third World powers in this troubled world of ours, and we're trying to attract their attention, how difficult it is to try to point out to them that our system works better than other systems in this fight for world recognition, or at least it's a fight to get people to go along with the open society that we in the Western world represent.

One of the best strengths, of course, of our argument can be the fact that we can produce enough food to feed ourselves and have enough left over; but here we are in this struggle internationally to win admiration of other countries where hunger runs rampant and we're cutting back food production. So the system somehow or another is falling down. It's falling down right here at home as well.

A week ago last Friday I went into a church in the intercity area of Washington to see how the feeding programs were working. They are not government feeding programs; these are volunteer feeding programs where volunteers from the church go out to the Eastern Market and comb through the dumpsters to find the waste food and cull it through to make some soup and to make the products so that they can serve a nutritious meal.

I ate lunch with those people that noon and one of the interesting things that was said to me by the priest in that church, he said "Senator, you're the fifth senator who has come down to see us but you're the first senator who hasn't come with television cameras," and he said "welcome".

He sat me down at a table and the person who was sitting next to me was a man who had worked all his life at Woodward and Lothrop, which is a department store down there and he retired at age sixty-five. He was now sixty-nine. His wife was ill, their Social Security didn't stretch.

The only place they could get an adequate meal was at this church. I ate with about 125 people like that and I went back into the kitchen to see the volunteers doing their best to cull through the waste food and I found, to my surprise and my chagrin, that there are no government commodities available for programs like that. No government flour for bread. No pasta products for the nutrition that they could represent. No potatoes. No eggs. No cheese. Strictly on their own. What a fantastic opportunity to design a program that will fill those needs.

Senator Leahy from Vermont and myself are holding hearings in Vermont on Monday, which is one of the reasons I went down to see what was actually happening. I'm the chairman, he's the ranking member of the Subcommittee on Oversight and Investigations of the Ag Committee, that covers all of our feeding programs. We're holding hearings in Vermont and then we're going to come out into North Dakota and I think we'll change some of those rules and get ourselves some programs that are in fact responsive.

Another program that bothers me, and that's one that comes along from time to time, and has occurred to you. We've had airline deregulation and everybody says, particularly, I guess, those, Madam Speaker, on our side of the aisle, that deregulation is wonderful because it turns everybody loose and everything works just fine after that.

We deregulated the railroads, we deregulated them, over my objections, and we deregulated the airlines with my support. That was one of the mistakes that I have made, and I have made a number of them.

We've been deregulating so many things and we haven't kept any type of control over this deregulation and now we wake up to find

ourselves in the small states, in the small towns with airline transportation that's idiotic. It costs 46 cents a mile to fly from Fargo, North Dakota, to Minneapolis, and then it costs 13 cents a mile to fly from Minneapolis to New York City. That's a bunch of baloney.

One of my colleagues in the Congress represents St. Louis, Missouri. He's in the House. He buys an airline ticket from Washington to San Francisco, flies to St. Louis, throws the rest of it away and saves money. Thirty percent of the people in this country who happen to live in favored cities are flying at below net cost and they're getting all kinds of benefits paid by who? By you and me. We're paying through the nose and I think we have to move toward that terrible bug-a-boo of regulation again, not to crimp the style of the airlines necessarily, but to eliminate these predatory pricing tactics that take advantage of the smaller towns that don't have that many choices and I'll introduce legislation that, very simply, again, I think, is practical.

The airlines tell us it costs about nine percent more, Madam Speaker, to fly a short route for a mile than to fly a long route segment. So we say fine, let's triple that allowance and we have the feeling that we're going to take a try. We may be successful, we may not be, with a very simple re-regulation procedure. That no airline can charge more than 30 percent more per mile for transportation on its most expensive route segment than it charges on its shortest route segment.

Let's move back toward reregulation, all that big boogymen of big government. But I think it meets the challenge of the time and I think it points up one concrete example where those of us who have these responsibilities have to make government work. We can't ignore the problems that keep coming up at us.

It's one of these things, of course, that sometimes makes you wonder whether the whole competition business is as wise as it's cracked up to be, but again, competition exists within government as well. Competition exists or you and I wouldn't be here today.

Many of you, I've campaigned side by side with up and down the streets of your hometowns. Many of you have been on the other side and I've campaigned with your opponent up and down the streets of your hometown, but there is a great deal of respect between the individuals who compete and the most basic necessity of our republic, the electing of people to represent everyone in the legislative bodies.

It's one of the key things that we do, and then when we assemble in our respective bodies, the challenges on our shoulders to make sure that we aren't just trying to have knee-jerk reaction to problems as they come along, but that we do design long-term working sensible programs to serve the test of time.

Madam Speaker, I appreciate so much your providing the opportunity to me to come here to say hello, to congratulate you on the great work that you're doing on behalf of our fantastic state of North Dakota and to say to you, Godspeed and good luck in the great work that you are doing. Thanks for giving me the privilege of being with you today.

MOTION

REP. STRINDEN MOVED that Senator Andrews' remarks be printed in the House Journal, which motion prevailed.

POINT OF PERSONAL PRIVILEGE

REP. O. HANSON: Madam Speaker: I rise to a point of personal privilege and request that my remarks be printed in the Journal.

Ladies and Gentlemen: In recent weeks you have seen many jackets worn by students visiting the Capitol, proclaiming they were conference winners in football, then some with regional winners and finally the other day one jacket proclaiming to be second in the state.

Today we have with us the only ones entitled to wear the jacket emblem on its back stating we beat them all in nine-man football. Yes, ladies and gentlemen, as you look at these young men they weren't destined to be state champions according to their numbers. Their school was the smallest school in the state having football, but one thing you can't measure by looking and that's courage in the face of insurmountable odds, they were behind in every game during the playoffs, with Parshall, Elgin, Rolla. But when the chips were down they came through. On that cold afternoon at Hughes Field in Bismarck with seven minutes to play they recovered the ball from Wyndmere on their own twenty-yard line, and doggedly drove the length of the field and with thirty-three seconds to go scored the touchdown that would forever endear them to their school, their fans, and to all the people in the state. Ladies and gentlemen, it's with immense pride I present to you the 1982 nine-man football state champions, the Wildcats of Sherwood High School.

RECOGNITION

SPEAKER KELLY ANNOUNCED that a former Representative was in the chambers, and requested that the House recognize former Representative Dan Olson, and Representative Olson was thereupon introduced to the House.

SPEAKER KELLY ANNOUNCED that a former Representative was in the chambers, and requested that the House recognize former Representative Florenz Bjornson, and Representative Bjornson was thereupon introduced to the House.

MOTION

REP. MERTENS MOVED that the amendments to HB 1013 be laid over one legislative day and placed at the bottom of the Sixth order of business, which motion prevailed.

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Transportation to which was referred HB 1374 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 2, delete lines 22 through 26 and insert in lieu thereof the following language: "Insurance information is the responsibility of the driver involved, and said driver has ten days to produce and deliver that information in a form acceptable to the driver's license division."

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. HJELLE, Chairman

HB 1374 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MOTION

REP. HJELLE MOVED that HB 1374 be returned to the Committee on Transportation, which motion prevailed.

SPEAKER KELLY ANNOUNCED that HB 1374 was rereferred to the Committee on Transportation.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

REP. MERTENS MOVED that the amendments to HB 1022 as recommended by the Committee on Appropriations as printed on page 901 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. SINER MOVED that the amendments to Engrossed HB 1072 as recommended by the Committee on Finance and Taxation as printed on pages 901-903 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. BROKAW MOVED that the amendments to Engrossed HB 1083 as recommended by the Committee on Natural Resources as printed on page 903 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. SINER MOVED that the amendments to HB 1264 as recommended by the Committee on Finance and Taxation as printed on pages 903 and 904 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. HJELLE MOVED that the amendments to HB 1336 as recommended by the Committee on Transportation as printed on pages 904 and 905 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. R. MEIERS MOVED that the amendments to HB 1338 as recommended by the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs** as printed on page 905 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. HJELLE MOVED that the amendments to HB 1379 as recommended by the **Committee on Transportation** as printed on pages 906-909 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. E. POMEROY MOVED that the amendments to HB 1383 as recommended by the **Committee on Judiciary** as printed on page 909 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. E. POMEROY MOVED that the amendments to HB 1387 as recommended by the **Committee on Judiciary** as printed on pages 909 and 910 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. SINNER MOVED that the amendments to HB 1415 as recommended by the **Committee on Finance and Taxation** as printed on page 910 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. S. F. HOFFNER MOVED that the amendments to HB 1426 as recommended by the **Committee on Industry, Business, and Labor** as printed on pages 910 and 911 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. SINNER MOVED that the amendments to HB 1443 as recommended by the **Committee on Finance and Taxation** as printed on pages 911 and 912 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. R. MEIERS MOVED that the amendments to HB 1469 as recommended by the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs** as printed on page 912 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. L. HANSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1513 as recommended by the **Committee on State and Federal Government** as printed on pages 912 and 913 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. BROKAW MOVED that the amendments to HB 1533 as recommended by the **Committee on Natural Resources** as printed on pages 913 and 914 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. BROKAW MOVED that the amendments to HB 1534 as recommended by the **Committee on Natural Resources** as printed on pages 914 and 915 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. BROKAW MOVED that the amendments to HB 1551 as recommended by the **Committee on Natural Resources** as printed on page 915 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. L. HANSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1555 as recommended by the **Committee on State and Federal Government** as

printed on page 915 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. JACOBSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1575 as recommended by the Committee on Education as printed on page 916 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. BROKAW MOVED that the amendments to HB 1584 as recommended by the Committee on Natural Resources as printed on pages 916 and 917 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. L. HANSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1598 as recommended by the Committee on State and Federal Government as printed on page 917 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. JACOBSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1608 as recommended by the Committee on Education as printed on pages 917 and 918 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. E. POMEROY MOVED that the amendments to HB 1616 as recommended by the Committee on Judiciary as printed on page 918 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. JACOBSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1623 as recommended by the Committee on Education as printed on pages 918 and 919 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. R. MEIERS MOVED that the amendments to HB 1624 as recommended by the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs as printed on page 919 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. L. HANSON MOVED that the amendments to Engrossed HB 1645 as recommended by the Committee on State and Federal Government as printed on pages 919 and 920 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. R. MEIERS MOVED that the amendments to HB 1661 as recommended by the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs as printed on page 920 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. HJELLE MOVED that the amendments to HB 1666 as recommended by the Committee on Transportation as printed on pages 920 and 921 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. JACOBSON MOVED that the amendments to HB 1724 as recommended by the Committee on Education as printed on page 921 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

REP. L. HANSON MOVED that the amendments to HCR 3013 as recommended by the Committee on State and Federal Government as

printed on page 922 of the House Journal be adopted, which motion prevailed.

RECOGNITION

SPEAKER KELLY ANNOUNCED that a former Representative was in the chambers, and requested that the House recognize former Representative Roger Hill, and Representative Hill was thereupon introduced to the House.

REPORTS OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully reports that it has examined the following bills and finds the same correctly engrossed:

HB 1019, HB 1068, HB 1314, HB 1343, HB 1394, HB 1453,
HB 1471, HB 1665, HB 1680, HB 1707

REP. G. MARTIN, Chairman

REP. O'CONNELL MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Enrollment and Engrossment respectfully reports that it has examined the following bill and finds the same correctly enrolled:

HCR 3039

REP. G. MARTIN, Chairman

REP. O'CONNELL MOVED that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1697: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 6-03-50, 6-06-18, 7-02-04, 13-01-14, subsection 1 of section 13-03-14, section 47-14-09, subsection 1 of section 51-13-03, and section 51-14-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to maximum allowable interest rates.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 13 YEAS, 92 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Brokaw; Erdman; Gerl; Hoffner, Serenus; Lardy; Meier, A.; Meyer, W.; Olafson; Shockman; Vig; Watne; Williams, A.; Williams, W.

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn;

Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson, B.;
 Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman;
 Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson;
 Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Moore; Murphy;
 Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell;
 Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier;
 Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice;
 Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler;
 Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Sinner; Solberg;
 Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem;
 Vander Vorst; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, C.; Wold;
 Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes

HB 1697 was declared lost.

HB 1019: A BILL for an Act making an appropriation for defraying the expenses of the securities commissioner of the state of North Dakota.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on page 855 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 100 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Black; Boyle; Brokaw;
 Conmy; DeMers; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl;
 Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik;
 Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill;
 Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan;
 Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec;
 Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang;
 Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin;
 Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.;
 Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby;
 Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik;
 Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson;
 Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier;
 Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice;
 Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider;
 Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Stofferahn;
 Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig;
 Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.;
 Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Aubol; Dotzenrod; Rued

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Solberg; Strinden

HB 1019 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1068: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new paragraph to subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 26-16.1-03, a new paragraph to subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 26-16.1-04, section 26-16.1-04.1, and a new section to chapter 57-38 of the North Dakota Century Code, or in the alternative if House Bill No. 1054 is approved by the forty-eighth legislative assembly, a new paragraph to subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 26.1-08-05, a new paragraph to subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 26.1-08-06, section 26.1-08-06.1, and a new section to chapter 57-38 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to elimination of coverage for experimental medical and surgical procedures, maximum benefits of a qualified medicare extended plan, and an income tax credit for comprehensive health association assessments; to amend and reenact section 26-01-11, subsection 12 of section 26-16.1-01, section 26-16.1-05, subsection 2 of section 26-16.1-07, subsection 4 of section 26-16.1-08, section 26-16.1-09, and subsection 4 of section 26-16.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, or in the alternative if House Bill No. 1054 is approved by the forty-eighth legislative assembly, section 26.1-03-17, subsection 10 of section 26.1-08-01, subsection 2 of section 26.1-08-03, sections 26.1-08-04 and 26.1-08-08, subsection 4 of section 26.1-08-09, and subsection 4 of section 26.1-08-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a premium tax credit for comprehensive health association assessments, to the definition of qualified plan, to limiting association premiums to one hundred thirty-five percent of established rates, to the payment of claim expenses in excess of premiums allocated for the payment of benefits, to the maximum benefits of the comprehensive health insurance plan, and to a waiting period; to repeal subsection 3 of section 26-16.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, or in the alternative if House Bill No. 1054 is approved by the forty-eighth legislative assembly to repeal subsection 3 of section 26.1-08-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to contracts of reinsurance; and to declare an emergency.

Which has been read.

MOTION

REP. MUSHIK MOVED that the House waive the reading of the title to HB 1068, which motion prevailed.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on pages 855 and 856 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner; Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Kingsbury; Madam Speaker

HB 1068 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause carried.

HB 1115: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 37-17.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to disaster response and recovery costs.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 98 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 8 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner; Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide;

Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden;
Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig;
Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, W.; Wold;
Madam Speaker

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Laughlin; Meiers, R.;
Mushik; Peterson; Richard; Whalen; Williams, C.

HB 1115 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. MARTINSON MOVED that HB 1241 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

REP. MARTINSON REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1241. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. MURPHY MOVED that HB 1698 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on Natural Resources, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

REP. MURPHY REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1698. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. GERL MOVED that HB 1436 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

REP. GERL REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1436. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. E. POMEROY MOVED that HB 1517 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

REP. E. POMEROY REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1517. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. LAUGHLIN MOVED that HB 1489 be returned to the House floor from the Committee on Political Subdivisions, which motion prevailed.

REQUEST

REP. LAUGHLIN REQUESTED the unanimous consent of the House to withdraw HB 1489. There being no objection, it was so ordered by the Speaker.

MOTION

REP. MUSHIK MOVED that HB 1707 be moved to the head of the calendar, which motion prevailed.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1707: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 57-39.2-02.1, 57-39.2-08.2, 57-40.2-02.1, and 57-40.3-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the rate of sales tax, use tax, and motor vehicle excise tax; to repeal section 57-40.3-03, relating to the motor vehicle excise tax; to provide an effective date; and to declare an emergency.

Which has been read.

MOTION

REP. HJELLE MOVED the previous question, which motion prevailed.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on page 859 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 101 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Backes; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, L.; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedah; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Kingsbury; Laughlin; Melby; O'Shea; Vig

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: None

HB 1707 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause carried.

MOTION

REP. MUSHIK MOVED that the House stand in recess until 3:50 p.m., which motion prevailed.

THE HOUSE RECONVENED pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Kelly presiding.

REPORT OF PROCEDURAL COMMITTEE

MADAM SPEAKER: Your procedural Committee on Delayed Bills, by a vote of 5 to 0, concludes that the introduction of HB 1728 should be allowed.

REP. BACKES, Chairman

FIRST READING OF A HOUSE BILL

Reps. Strinden, Backes introduced:

HB 1728: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 57-60 of the North Dakota Century Code, providing a minimum tax payable by electrical generating plants; and to amend and reenact subsection 2 of section 57-33.1-02 and sections 57-60-02, 57-60-04, 57-60-05, and 57-60-14 of the North Dakota Century Code, imposing an additional tax on electrical generating plants and providing for deposit of funds from the additional tax in the state general fund.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Finance and Taxation.

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1309: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 50-06.2-01, 50-06.2-02, 50-06.2-03, 50-06.2-04, and 50-06.2-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to comprehensive human service programs and to provide funding for programs to prevent or reduce institutional care.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 102 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin;

Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.;
 Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby;
 Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik;
 Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson;
 Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier;
 Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice;
 Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler;
 Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner;
 Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm;
 Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.;
 Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Strinden;
 Unhjem

HB 1309 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1314: A BILL for an Act to provide state funding for
 community alternatives to institutional care on behalf of
 elderly and disabled persons.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on
 pages 871 and 872 of the House Journal, the roll was called and
 there were 99 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Aubol; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers;
 Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz;
 Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik;
 Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle;
 Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Jacobson;
 Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koski;
 Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.;
 Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman;
 Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson;
 Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.;
 Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas;
 Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.;
 Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.;
 Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley;
 Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald;
 Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Stofferahn; Strinden;
 Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig;
 Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.;
 Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, R.; Backes; Black;
Hanson, L.; Hughes; Koehn; Solberg

HB 1314 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTION

REP. MUSHIK MOVED that the rules be suspended and that HB 1314 be messaged to the Senate immediately, which motion prevailed.

MESSAGE TO THE SENATE HOUSE CHAMBER

MR. PRESIDENT: I have the honor to transmit herewith the following which the House has passed and your favorable consideration is requested on:

HB 1314

Very respectfully,
CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk

SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

HB 1341: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 16.1-01-04 and section 25-01.2-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the qualifications of electors.

Which has been read.

MOTION

REP. RICHARD MOVED the previous question, which motion prevailed.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 25 YEAS, 79 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Black; Dotzenrod; Goetz; Gorder;
Gunsch; Hanson, O.; Hughes; Kent; Kingsbury; Kuchera;
Lang; Melby; Murphy; Nicholas; Olafson; Olson, A.;
Peterson; Rice; Rued; Schindler; Strinden; Thompson;
Timm; Whalen

NAYS: Anderson, R.; Aubol; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers;
DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Gullickson;
Halmrast; Hamerlik; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle;
Hoffner; Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Jacobson;
Keller; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar;
Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin;
Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.;
Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Mertens;
Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja;
Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Opedahl; O'Shea;
Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer;

Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.

HB 1341 was declared lost.

HB 1343: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 38-11.1-05, 38-11.1-08, and 38-11.1-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to notice of oil and gas drilling operations to surface owners, offers of settlement for damages resulting from drilling operations, and legal actions in regard to damages resulting from drilling operations.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on page 856 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 103 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: None

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Strinden

HB 1343 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1355: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 12.1-14-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to conduct in connection with any election.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called, and there were 44 YEAS, 59 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aubol; Black; Brokaw; DeMers; DuBord; Erdman; Gerl; Gorder; Gullickson; Halmrast; Haugland; Hill; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S.F.; Horgan; Jacobson; Knudson; Koski; Lardy; Larson, B.; Laughlin; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Mushik; O'Connell; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Richard; Riehl; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shockman; Solberg; Stofferahn; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Boyle; Conmy; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Gates; Goetz; Gunsch; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Hausauer; Hjelle; Hughes; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Koehn; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson, R.; Lautenschlager; Lipsiea; Martin, C.; Martinson; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Peltier; Peterson; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Shide; Sinner; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Wentz; Whalen; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson L.; Strinden

HB 1355 was declared lost.

HB 1360: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 49-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to public participation in energy conversion and transmission facility siting.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 12 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes;

Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koski; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Aubol; Hausauer; Koehn; Kretschmar; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Peltier; Peterson; Riehl; Riley; Watne; Williams, A.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Martinson; Mertens; Strinden

HB 1360 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1362: A BILL for an Act to prohibit negotiation of certain insurance policies for financial institutions.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 28 YEAS, 74 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: DeMers; DuBord; Gerl; Hanson, O.; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Horgan; Knudson; Koski; Lardy; Laughlin; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meyer, W.; Murphy; Rued; Schneider; Schoenwald; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Thompson; Vig; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, W.

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hoffner, S. F.; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Koehn; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Martinson; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Shide; Shockman; Swiontek; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Watne; Wentz; Williams, C.; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Richard;
Strinden

HB 1362 was declared lost.

HB 1390: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 6-05 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to allowing banks and trust companies to establish trust service offices at locations of other banks.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 43 YEAS, 57 NAYS, 6 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, R.; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Hamerlik; Haugland; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson, R.; Lautenschlager; Lipsiea; Martin, G.; Martinson; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Peltier; Peterson; Rayl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Sinner; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wentz; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; DuBord; Erdman; Gerl; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hanson, O.; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Lardy; Larson, B.; Laughlin; Linderman; Lloyd; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Solberg; Thompson; Vig; Watne; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Kuchera;
Martin, C.; Retzer; Strinden

HB 1390 was declared lost.

HB 1394: A BILL for an Act to provide for a railroad special fuel surcharge to be paid by any railway corporation abandoning two percent or more of its rail trackage in this state; for collection, payment, and records; for a special fund and fund uses; and for public service commission sale, transfer, or lease of acquired rail properties; and to declare an emergency.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on page 857 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 14 YEAS, 84 NAYS, 8 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Black; Brokaw; DuBord; Horgan; Lardy; Laughlin; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Riehl; Shockman; Stofferahn; Vig; Watne; Williams, W.

NAYS: Anderson, R.; Aubol; Boyle; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Gorder; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Rice; Richard; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Sinner; Solberg; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, C.; Backes; Goetz; Gullickson; Hanson, L.; Martin, C.; Retzer; Strinden

HB 1394 was declared lost.

HB 1399: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-38-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exemptions from income tax, the taxation of unrelated income; and to provide an effective date.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 95 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 8 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd;

Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Hughes; Kuchera; Timm

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Anderson, R.; Backes; Hanson, L.; Kingsbury; Martin, C.; Retzer; Strinden; Vig

HB 1399 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1453: A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 24-02-26.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to conditions precedent to a contractor demanding arbitration on claims for extra compensation.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on page 857 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 98 YEAS, 1 NAY, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Whalen

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Kent;
Kingsbury; Rayl; Retzer; Strinden

HB 1453 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1455: A BILL for an Act to create and enact five new subsections to section 43-07-01 and eight new sections to chapter 43-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to definitions and prevailing wage standards for government contracts; and to amend and reenact sections 43-07-20, 43-07-21, and 43-07-22 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to prevailing wage on government contracts; and providing a penalty.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 61 YEAS, 42 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; DuBord; Erdman; Gerl; Goetz; Gullickson; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Haugland; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner; Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Jacobson; Keller; Knudson; Koski; Lardy; Larson, B.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Mushik; Nicholas; O'Connell; Opedahl; O'Shea; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Richard; Riehl; Sanstead; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shockman; Solberg; Stofferahn; Unhjem; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Gates; Gorder; Gunsch; Hanson, O.; Hausauer; Hughes; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Koehn; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson, R.; Lipsiea; Melby; Moore; Murphy; Nalewaja; Nowatzki; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Peltier; Peterson; Retzer; Rice; Riley; Rued; Schindler; Shide; Sinner; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Whalen; Wold

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Strinden

HB 1455 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1457: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsections 1 and 2 of section 5-02-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the retail licensing of liquor establishments; and declaring an emergency.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 80 YEAS, 21 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner; Serenus; Horgan; Jacobson; Keller; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Koski; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shockman; Sinner; Stofferahn; Swiontek; Unhjem; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Anderson, R.; Gunsch; Hanson, O.; Hoffner, S. F.; Hughes; Kent; Knudson; Koehn; Kretschmar; Larson, B.; Lipsiea; Melby; Olsen, D.; Retzer; Rice; Rued; Shide; Thompson; Timm; Vander Vorst; Whalen

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Murphy; Solberg; Strinden

HB 1457 passed, the title was agreed to, and the emergency clause carried.

HB 1471: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 6-05.1-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the trust offices of subsidiary trust companies.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on pages 857 and 858 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 93 YEAS, 8 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Boyle; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, R.; Laughlin;

Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.;
 Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Melby; Mertens;
 Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja;
 Nicholas; Nowatzki; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.;
 Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Peterson; Pomeroy, E.;
 Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley;
 Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald;
 Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Swiontek;
 Thompson; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz;
 Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold;
 Madam Speaker

NAYS: Aubol; Black; Brokaw; DuBord; Erdman; Larson, B.;
 Meiers, R.; O'Connell

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Murphy;
 Strinden; Timm

HB 1471 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1502: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 49-22-08.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to energy conversion and transmission facilities siting; and to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 49-22-08.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the designation of a route for a transmission facility by the public service commission.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 87 YEAS, 15 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle;
 Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Erdman;
 Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch;
 Halmrast; Hamerlik; Haugland; Hill; Hjelle;
 Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes;
 Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Knudson; Koski; Kuchera; Lang;
 Lardy; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman;
 Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson;
 Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.;
 Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas;
 Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.;
 O'Shea; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice;
 Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider;
 Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg;
 Stofferahn; Swiontek; Thompson; Unhjem; Vander Vorst;
 Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Eagles; Hanson, O.; Hausauer; Kingsbury; Kloubec;
Koehn; Kretschmar; Larson, B.; Opedahl; Peltier;
Peterson; Rued; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Strinden;
Timm

HB 1502 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1558: A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 28-21.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the execution of the judgment; to repeal chapter 28-21 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the execution of the judgment; and to provide a penalty.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 3 YEAS, 98 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Aubol; Stofferahn; Vander Vorst

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Black; Boyle; Brokaw;
Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman;
Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch;
Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer;
Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan;
Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec;
Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang;
Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin;
Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.;
Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby;
Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik;
Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson;
Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier;
Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard;
Riehl; Riley; Rued; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider;
Schoenwald; Shide; Sinner; Solberg; Swiontek; Thompson;
Timm; Unhjem; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.;
Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Peterson;
Shockman; Strinden

HB 1558 was declared lost.

HB 1588: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 57-20-01 and subsection 2 of section 57-26-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the penalties assessed for

delinquent property taxes and redemption from real estate tax sales.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 75 YEAS, 27 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Haugland; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Melby; Moore; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schoenwald; Shide; Sinner; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Unhjem; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Madam Speaker

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Brokaw; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Hanson, O.; Hausauer; Kingsbury; Knudson; Meiers, R.; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Murphy; Mushik; Olafson; Pomeroy, E.; Riehl; Rued; Schneider; Shockman; Solberg; Stofferahn; Timm; Vander Vorst; Whalen; Wold

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Kuchera; Peterson

HB 1588 passed and the title was agreed to.

HB 1593: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 13-03.1-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to insurance for loans under the North Dakota Consumer Finance Act; and to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 13-03-18 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to insurance for small loans.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 6 YEAS, 92 NAYS, 8 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Black; Conmy; Gerl; Lardy; Rued; Swiontek

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Boyle; Brokaw; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; DuBord; Hanson, L.; Hausauer; Horgan; Kuchera; Peterson; Thompson

HB 1593 was declared lost.

HB 1611: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 54-05.1-02, subsection 2 of section 54-05.1-03, and sections 54-05.1-05 and 54-05.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the registration and activities of lobbyists.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 22 YEAS, 79 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Black; Boyle; Brokaw; DeMers; DuBord; Gerl; Hoffner, Serenus; Knudson; Koski; Lardy; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; O'Shea; Pomeroy, G.; Sanstead; Schoenwald; Shockman; Solberg; Stofferahn; Wentz

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Conmy; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, S. F.; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Koehn; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martinson; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl;

Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard;
 Riehl; Riley; Rued; Schindler; Schneider; Shide;
 Sinner; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem;
 Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Whalen; Williams, A.;
 Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Horgan;
 Nalewaja; Peterson

HB 1611 was declared lost.

HB 1614: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section
 12.1-14-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to
 corrupt practices during election.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was
 called and there were 9 YEAS, 93 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Conmy; Kingsbury; Lipsiea; Murphy; Olson, A.; Rued;
 Shide; Vander Vorst; Whalen

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Boyle;
 Brokaw; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman;
 Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch;
 Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer;
 Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan;
 Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson;
 Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy;
 Larson, B.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd;
 Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meier, A.;
 Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.;
 Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell;
 Olafson; Olsen, D.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier;
 Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Retzer; Rice; Richard;
 Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schneider;
 Schoenwald; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn;
 Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vig; Watne;
 Wentz; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Wold;
 Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Larson, R.;
 Peterson

HB 1614 was declared lost.

HB 1620: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to
 chapter 53-06.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, to

provide that net proceeds from games of chance may not be distributed to law enforcement agencies.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 28 YEAS, 73 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Boyle; Brokaw; DeMers; Gorder; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Jacobson; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Koski; Kuchera; Lardy; Linderman; Meier, A.; Nalewaja; Olson, A.; Opedahl; Retzer; Schindler; Shide; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Vander Vorst; Vig; Williams, A.; Wold

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Black; Conmy; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gates; Gerl; Goetz; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hoffner, S. F.; Horgan; Hughes; Keller; Kent; Knudson; Koehn; Kretschmar; Lang; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meiers, R.; Melby; Mertens; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Mushik; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Rayl; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schneider; Schoenwald; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, C.; Williams, W.; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; O'Shea; Peterson; Rued

HB 1620 was declared lost.

HB 1621: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 3 of section 53-06.1-11 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to expenses for games of chance.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill, the roll was called and there were 12 YEAS, 87 NAYS, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Black; Gates; Hausauer; Horgan; Kretschmar; Lipsiea; Lloyd; Meier, A.; Mertens; Rayl; Schneider; Williams, W.

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Anderson, R.; Aubol; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; DuBord; Eagles; Erdman; Gerl;

Goetz; Gorder; Gullickson; Gunsch; Halmrast; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kingsbury; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, B.; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Martin, C.; Martin, G.; Martinson; Meiers, R.; Melby; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Mushik; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; O'Connell; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; O'Shea; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Retzer; Rice; Riehl; Riley; Sanstead; Schindler; Schoenwald; Shide; Shockman; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Swiontek; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Vig; Watne; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Haugland; Murphy; Peterson; Richard; Rued

HB 1621 was declared lost.

HB 1631: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 20.1-03-17 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the issuance of game and fish licenses.

Which has been read.

ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the bill as amended on page 819 of the House Journal, the roll was called and there were 73 YEAS, 28 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

YEAS: Anderson, R.; Black; Boyle; Brokaw; Conmy; DeMers; Dotzenrod; Eagles; Gates; Goetz; Gorder; Gunsch; Hamerlik; Hanson, O.; Haugland; Hausauer; Hill; Hjelle; Hoffner, Serenus; Hoffner, S. F.; Hughes; Jacobson; Keller; Kent; Kloubec; Knudson; Koehn; Koski; Kretschmar; Kuchera; Lang; Lardy; Larson, R.; Laughlin; Lipsia; Martin, C.; Martinson; Meier, A.; Meiers, R.; Meyer, R.; Meyer, W.; Moore; Murphy; Nalewaja; Nicholas; Nowatzki; Olafson; Olsen, D.; Olson, A.; Opedahl; Peltier; Pomeroy, E.; Pomeroy, G.; Retzer; Rice; Richard; Riehl; Schindler; Schneider; Shide; Sinner; Solberg; Stofferahn; Strinden; Thompson; Timm; Unhjem; Vander Vorst; Wentz; Whalen; Williams, A.; Williams, C.; Wold

NAYS: Anderson, C.; Aubol; DuBord; Erdman; Gerl; Gullickson; Halmrast; Horgan; Larson, B.; Lautenschlager; Linderman; Lloyd; Martin, G.; Melby; Mertens; Mushik; O'Connell; O'Shea; Rayl; Riley;

Sanstead; Schoenwald; Shockman; Swiontek; Vig; Watne;
Williams, W.; Madam Speaker

ABSENT AND NOT VOTING: Backes; Hanson, L.; Kingsbury;
Peterson; Rued

HB 1631 passed and the title was agreed to.

MOTIONS

REP. MUSHIK MOVED that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

REP. MUSHIK MOVED that the House be on the Fifth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Fifth order, the House be on the Ninth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Ninth order, the House be on the Thirteenth order of business, and at the conclusion of the Thirteenth order, the House stand adjourned until 1:00 p.m., Friday, February 11, 1983, which motion prevailed.

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1008 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 18 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 13, delete the numerals "1,131,033" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "1,092,981"

On page 1, line 16, delete the numerals "1,711,163" and insrt in lieu thereof the numerals "1,673,111"

On page 1, line 18, delete the numerals "772,862" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "734,810"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

The salaries and wages line item of the Division of Independent Study is reduced by \$38,052 from the general fund. Of the total, \$38,292 is a reduction that will allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$10,349 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement. The net reduction to salaries and wages includes a \$240 increase for other payroll changes.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1008 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1011 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 20 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 13, delete the numerals "162,809" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "157,712"

On page 1, line 14, delete the numerals "109,374" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "112,374"

On page 1, line 16, delete the numerals "731,368" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "753,368"

On page 1, line 17, delete the numerals "1,004,551" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "1,024,454"

On page 1, line 19, delete the numerals "336,183" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "356,086"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

Council on the Arts

The salaries and wages line item is reduced by \$5,097 from the general fund to allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$1,415 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement.

The operating expenses line item is increased by \$3,000 from the general fund to provide for the continued membership in the National Assembly of State Art Agencies. The grants, benefits, and claims line item is increased by \$22,000 from the general fund to provide the necessary funds for the continuation of the touring arts program at the current level.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1011 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1014 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 7 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING

that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 12, delete the numerals "281,293" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "272,066"

On page 1, line 15, delete the numerals "335,788" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "326,561"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

The salaries and wages line item of the Department of Veterans' Affairs is reduced by \$9,227 from other funds. This reduction will allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$2,561 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1014 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1015 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 19 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 12, delete the numerals "1,609,096" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "1,547,994"

On page 1, line 16, delete the numerals "2,110,160" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "2,049,058"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

The salaries and wages line item for the State Laboratories Department is reduced by \$61,102 from the general fund. Of the total, \$54,789 is a reduction that will allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$14,734 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement. In addition a reduction

of \$6,313 was made to reflect adjustments to the payroll since the budget was submitted.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1015 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1020 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 21 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 12, delete the numerals "404,542" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "389,127"

On page 1, line 14, delete the numerals "706,482" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "691,067"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

The salaries and wages line item for the Predatory Animal Control is reduced by \$15,415 from the general fund. This reduction will allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$3,891 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1020 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1031 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 21 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 13, delete the numerals "1,683,370" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "1,616,990"

On page 1, line 21, delete the numerals "4,371,978" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "4,305,598"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

The salaries and wages line item for the Motor Vehicle Department is reduced by \$66,380 from the motor vehicle registration fund. Of the total, \$56,282 is a reduction that will allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$14,489 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement. The total reduction also includes an increase of \$4,527 for changes in hospitalization and a reduction of \$14,625 for changes due to employee turnover.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1031 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1032 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 18 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 14, delete the numerals "790,822" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "762,616"

On page 1, line 20, delete the numerals "1,211,150" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "1,182,944"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

The salaries and wages line item of the Land Department is reduced by \$28,206 from the state lands maintenance fund to allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$7,350 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1032 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was referred HB 1035 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 18 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 13, delete the numerals "308,415" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "302,042"

On page 1, line 18, delete the numerals "1,133,234" and insert in lieu thereof the numerals "1,126,861"

And renumber the lines accordingly

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

The salaries and wages line item of the Teachers' Fund for Retirement is reduced by \$6,373 from other funds. Of the total, \$10,485 is a reduction that will allow funds for four percent salary increases the first year of the biennium and no salary increases in the second year. A contingent salary increase of two percent in the second year amounting to \$2,910 is to be provided in a separate appropriation bill. Funds are not provided for additional state contributions to retirement. The net reduction to salaries and wages includes a \$4,112 increase for other payroll changes.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1035 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was rereferred HB 1067 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 15 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 1, delete the word "section" and insert in lieu thereof the words "sections 39-03.1-09 and"

On page 1, line 3, after the word "Dakota" insert the words "and members of the highway patrol"

On page 1, after line 5, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 39-03.1-09 of the 1981 Supplement to the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

39-03.1-09. Payments by contributors. Every member ~~shall be is~~ required to contribute into the fund a sum equal to ~~seven~~ eight percent of ~~his~~ monthly salary, but not to exceed one hundred ~~thirty-three~~ fifty-two dollars, which sum shall be deducted from ~~his the member's~~ salary and credited to ~~his the member's~~ account in the fund. A contributor who was paid a refund or severance allowance upon a termination of employment with the patrol and who again becomes a contributor may, at any time prior to retirement, elect to return to the fund the amount which was paid ~~him to the contributor~~ as a refund or severance allowance plus regular interest thereon for

the period during which the amount was withdrawn from the fund. All such payments must be made in full before a retirement or optional retirement allowance is granted, and, if the contributor elects to make ~~such~~ the payment, any survivor's allowance to which ~~his~~ the contributor's survivor would otherwise be entitled shall be reduced by an amount and for such time as will assure that the back payments will be returned to the fund. Every contributor who shall elect to make ~~such~~ the back payments shall receive full credit under this chapter for all contributions made into the fund and for all service credits to which ~~he~~ the contributor might thereby be entitled."

On page 1, line 11, delete the word "fifteen" and insert in lieu thereof the word "fourteen"

On page 1, line 13, delete the words "ninety-six" and insert in lieu thereof the words "seventy-seven"

And renumber the lines, sections, and pages accordingly
 REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1067 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Education to which was referred HB 1253 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 9 YEAS, 6 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO NOT PASS:

On page 1, line 3, delete the words "an ordinary majority" and insert in lieu thereof the words "a fifty-five percent majority"

On page 1, line 12, after the overstruck word "~~sixty~~" insert the word "fifty-five", remove the overstrike over the word "percent", and delete the words "a majority"

On page 1, line 21, after the overstruck word "~~sixty~~" insert the word "fifty-five", remove the overstrike over the word "percent", and delete the words "a majority"

On page 2, line 11, remove the overstrike over the period

On page 2, remove the overstrike over the words in lines 12 through 16

On page 2, line 17, remove the overstrike over the words "~~b. There~~" and delete the word ", there"

- On page 2, line 23, remove the overstrike over the words "~~having a total population of less~~"
- On page 2, line 24, remove the overstrike over the words "~~than four thousand according to the last federal decennial~~"
- On page 2, line 25, remove the overstrike over the word "~~census,~~"
- On page 2, line 27, after the overstruck word "~~sixty~~" insert the word "fifty-five", remove the overstrike over the word "~~percent~~" and delete the words "a majority"
- On page 3, line 20, after the overstruck word "~~sixty~~" insert the word "fifty-five", remove the overstrike over the word "~~percent~~" and delete the words "a majority"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. JACOBSON, Chairman

HB 1253 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1488 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

- On page 1, line 12, after the word "of" insert the word "substantial"
- On page 1, line 13, remove the overstrike over the word "~~consideration~~" and immediately thereafter insert the word "or"
- On page 1, line 17, after the word "of" insert the word "substantial"
- On page 1, line 18, remove the overstrike over the word "~~consideration~~" and immediately thereafter insert the word "or"
- On page 1, line 22, after the word "of" insert the word "substantial"
- On page 1, line 23, delete the words ", and any"
- On page 1, line 24, delete the words "foodstuffs whatsoever"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. E. POMEROY, Chairman

HB 1488 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on State and Federal Government to which was rereferred HB 1490 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO NOT PASS:

On page 1, line 1, after the word "reenact" insert the words "subsection 1 of"

On page 1, line 6, after the second period insert the words "Subsection 1 of" and delete the word "Section" and in lieu thereof insert the word "section"

On page 1, line 11, remove the overstrike over the word "and", and delete the first underscored comma, and delete the words ", and applications"

On page 1, delete lines 16 through 27

And delete the remainder of the bill

And renumber the lines and pages accordingly

REP. L. HANSON, Chairman

HB 1490 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Finance and Taxation to which was referred HB 1586 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 16 YEAS, 1 NAY, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 26, after the word "figure" insert the words "using a pro forma return"

On page 2, line 20, after the word "figure" insert the words "using a pro forma return"

On page 3, line 25, after the word "figure" insert the words "using a pro forma return"

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. SINNER, Chairman

HB 1586 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Finance and Taxation to which was referred HB 1596 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 10 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 2, after the numeral "57-06-02" insert the words "and section 57-06-17"

On page 1, line 3, after the word "purposes" insert the words "and providing for an exemption for pipeline property that is deemed to be a gathering line"

On page 1, after line 13, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 57-06-17 of the North Dakota Century Code is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows:

57-06-17. Allocation of assessment of operative property constituting a single and continuous property. Pole lines, pipelines, and all operative property of any company defined in this chapter, constituting a single and continuous line of property, shall be separately assessed by the state board of equalization. Gathering pipelines used to transport oil or gas from a lease to a trunk or main pipeline shall be exempt from the provisions of this chapter. The board shall fix the value per mile of each pole line, pipeline, or other operative property constituting a single and continuous property, and thereupon shall make to the counties of the state in which such lines are located a pro rata distribution per mile of the assessment of the several lines."

And renumber the lines, sections, and pages accordingly
REP. SINER, Chairman

HB 1596 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1643 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 12, after the second word "the" insert the word "prior"

On page 1, line 13, overstrike the words "covered by the statement"

On page 1, line 15, after the second word "the" insert the word "prior"

On page 1, line 16, overstrike the words "covered by the statement"

On page 1, line 18, overstrike the words "October fifteenth of each" and insert immediately thereafter the words "January thirtieth following such"

On page 1, line 19, delete the words "Within thirty days of the"

On page 1, delete lines 20 through 24

And renumber the lines accordingly

REP. E. POMEROY, Chairman

HB 1643 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Industry, Business, and Labor to which was referred SB 2081 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends the same DO PASS:

On page 1, line 2, delete the word "and" and after the word "penalty" insert the words "; and to provide an effective date"

On page 1, after line 14, insert the following new section:

"SECTION 2. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act is effective on January 1, 1984."

And renumber the lines and sections accordingly

REP. S. F. HOFFNER, Chairman

SB 2081 was placed on the Sixth order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was rereferred HB 1062 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 5 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1062 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was rereferred HB 1063 has had the same under consideration and

recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1063 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was rereferred HB 1120 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 19 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

HB 1120 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred HB 1262 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

HB 1262 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs to which was referred HB 1342 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. R. MEIERS, Chairman

HB 1342 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HB 1346 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HB 1346 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HB 1369 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HB 1369 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was rereferred HB 1413 has had the same under consideration and

recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

HB 1413 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Transportation to which was referred HB 1431 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. HJELLE, Chairman

HB 1431 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HB 1478 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HB 1478 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was rereferred HB 1491 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HB 1491 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred HB 1493 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

HB 1493 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Appropriations to which was rereferred Engrossed HB 1507 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 16 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. MERTENS, Chairman

Engrossed HB 1507 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was rereferred HB 1512 has had the same under consideration and

recommends by a vote of 15 YEAS, 1 NAY, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HB 1512 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HB 1563 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HB 1563 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred HB 1571 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

HB 1571 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred HB 1573 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

HB 1573 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred HB 1606 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

HB 1606 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs to which was referred HB 1607 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 9 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. R. MEIERS, Chairman

HB 1607 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred HB 1612 has had the same under consideration and

recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

HB 1612 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs to which was referred HB 1622 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 11 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. R. MEIERS, Chairman

HB 1622 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HB 1641 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HB 1641 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Judiciary to which was referred HB 1642 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. E. POMEROY, Chairman

HB 1642 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs to which was referred HB 1677 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 2 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. R. MEIERS, Chairman

HB 1677 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Natural Resources to which was referred HB 1679 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO NOT PASS.

REP. BROKAW, Chairman

HB 1679 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Transportation to which was referred HB 1705 has had the same under consideration and

recommends by a vote of 9 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. HJELLE, Chairman

HB 1705 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HCR 3017 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HCR 3017 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HCR 3019 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 13 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HCR 3019 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Agriculture to which was referred HCR 3020 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. W. MEYER, Chairman

HCR 3020 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs to which was referred HCR 3027 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 15 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. R. MEIERS, Chairman

HCR 3027 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

MADAM SPEAKER: Your Committee on Political Subdivisions to which was referred HCR 3041 has had the same under consideration and recommends by a vote of 12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 4 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING that the same DO PASS.

REP. DOTZENROD, Chairman

HCR 3041 was placed on the Eleventh order of business on the calendar for the succeeding legislative day.

FIRST READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

Reps. Unhjem, Hamerlik introduced:

HCR 3051: A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study methods and practices which would promote the preservation and restoration of wetlands in the state. Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Natural Resources.

Rep. Unhjem introduced:

HCR 3052: A concurrent resolution to direct the Legislative Council to conduct a study of the desirability of adopting uniform laws in the areas of arbitration, eminent domain, consumer sales practices, common interest ownership, transboundary pollution, and to study the existing Articles VIII and IX of the Uniform Commercial Code.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Industry, Business, and Labor.

Committee on Appropriations introduced:

HCR 3053: A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the feasibility and efficiency of placing all state laboratories in a central laboratory facility; to determine methods which reduce costs and better utilize laboratory space and equipment; and to analyze the building and other costs of such a consolidation.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on State and Federal Government.

FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

SB 2250: A BILL for an Act to reenact section 1 of chapter 216 of the 1981 Session Laws of North Dakota and section 2 of chapter 256 of the 1979 Session Laws of North Dakota and to authorize the state board of higher education to issue revenue bonds for the construction of student housing at North Dakota state university of agriculture and applied science and to provide an appropriation; to issue and sell self-liquidating, tax-exempt bonds to construct a revenue-producing parking lot at the university of North Dakota and to provide an appropriation; to authorize the state board of higher education to issue and sell self-liquidating, tax-exempt bonds to construct a revenue-producing, coal-fired generating boiler at the university of North Dakota and to provide an appropriation; to authorize the state board of higher education to issue and sell self-liquidating, tax-exempt bonds to construct a revenue-producing student housing at Minot state college and to provide an appropriation; to authorize the state board of higher education to issue and sell self-liquidating, tax-exempt bonds for the construction or purchase and relocation of revenue-producing student housing at the university of North Dakota; to provide an appropriation; and to declare an emergency.

Was read the first time and referred to the Committee on Education.

SB 2308: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 16.1-06-04, 16.1-06-09, and 16.1-06-12 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the form of the ballot in elections.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary.**

SB 2328: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 1 of section 30.1-10-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the renunciation of succession.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary.**

SB 2343: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 35-03 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to collateral real estate mortgages.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business, and Labor.**

SB 2400: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact sections 57-38-38 and 57-38-39 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to audit, assessment of additional tax, and protest procedure.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Finance and Taxation.**

SB 2414: A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 39-04 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to retirement of POW license plates and issuance of commemorative replicas.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Social Services and Veterans Affairs.**

SB 2432: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 43-19.1-28 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to when the state and its political subdivisions must employ a professional engineer for construction of public works.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions.**

SB 2444: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 40-08-12, relating to a biennial vote on whether city council proceedings should be published in the official newspaper.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions.**

SB 2450: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 48-01-01 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to bonds for contractors for public improvements.

Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Political Subdivisions.**

SB 2463: A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 27-04-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to security services to the supreme court; and to repeal section

27-04-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to sheriffs acting as marshals of the supreme court.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

FIRST READING OF SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTIONS

SCR 4019: A concurrent resolution directing a Legislative Council study of the voting systems in use in North Dakota.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

SCR 4022: A concurrent resolution directing the Legislative Council to study the operation of games of chance within the state with emphasis on the use of the net proceeds generated by games of chance.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Judiciary**.

SCR 4026: A concurrent resolution urging the Congress of the United States to provide that federally owned lands within the state of North Dakota that are in agricultural use be conveyed to private owners.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on State and Federal Government**.

SCR 4028: A concurrent resolution urging the Federal Reserve Board to adopt policies that will lessen the volatility of interest rates.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business, and Labor**.

SCR 4034: A concurrent resolution directing a Legislative Council study of joblessness, particularly among young persons, with the goal of reducing unemployment and underemployment to the lowest possible level and to determine the need for legislation to achieve that goal.
Was read the first time and referred to the **Committee on Industry, Business, and Labor**.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Mushik's motion.

CHARLES FLEMING, Chief Clerk